
 

Continued on back side  
 

 

 

A G E N D A 
 Sacramento Transportation Authority 
 Sacramento Abandoned Vehicle Service Authority (SAVSA) 

 700 H Street, Suite 1450 • Sacramento, California • 95814 
(Board of Directors may participate via teleconference) 

 

 
THURSDAY  AUGUST 13, 2020 1:30 PM 
 

 
Members: Sue Frost, Garrett Gatewood, Eric Guerra, Steve Hansen, Jeff Harris, Kerri Howell, 

Patrick Hume, Patrick Kennedy, Steve Miller, Don Nottoli (Vice Chair), Susan Peters, 
Paul Sandhu, Jay Schenirer, Phil Serna, Darrell Steinberg, Darren Suen (Chair) 

Alternates: Nick Avdis, Steven Detrick, Shawn Farmer, Rosanna Herber, Mike Kozlowski, 
Porsche Middleton, Donald Terry 

 
 

The Governing Boards of the Sacramento Transportation Authority (STA) and the Sacramento 
Abandoned Vehicle Service Authority (SAVSA) meet concurrently. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES  

 
In compliance with directives of the County, State, and Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention (CDC), this meeting is live stream and closed to the public. Temporary procedures 
are subject to change pursuant to guidelines related to social distancing and minimizing person-
to-person contact. 
 
Live Meeting comment 
Make a verbal public comment during a meeting. The public comment phone line will open 15-
minutes prior to the start of the meeting. Refer to the agenda and listen to the live meeting to 
determine when is the best time to call to be placed in queue to make a public comment. Callers 
may be on hold for up to an extended period of time and should plan accordingly. Dial (916) 
875-2500 and follow the prompts to be placed in queue for a specific agenda item or off-agenda 
matter. When the Chair opens public comment for a specific agenda item or off-agenda matter, 
callers will be transferred from the queue into the meeting to make a verbal comment. Each 
agenda item queue will remain open until the public comment period is closed for that specific 
item. 
 
Written comment 
• Send an email comment to BoardClerk@saccounty.net. Include meeting date and agenda 

item number or off-agenda item.  Contact information is optional.   
• Mail a comment to 700 H Street, Suite 2450, Sacramento, CA 95814. Include meeting 

date and agenda item number or off-agenda item.  Contact information is optional.     
• Written comments are distributed to members, filed in the record, and will not be read aloud. 

   
 

 
 

mailto:BoardClerk@saccounty.net


A G E N D A 
Sacramento Transportation Authority 

Sacramento Abandoned Vehicle Service Authority 
 

August 13, 2020 
 

Page 2 
 

VIEW MEETING 
 

The meeting is videotaped and cablecast live on Metrocable 14 on the Comcast, Consolidated 
Communications and AT&T U-Verse Systems.  It is closed captioned for hearing impaired 
viewers and webcast live at http://metro14live.saccounty.net. There will be a rebroadcast of this 
meeting on Sunday at 2:00 p.m.  A DVD copy is available for checkout through the County 
Library System seven to ten days following the meeting. 
  

 
MEETING MATERIAL 

 
The on-line version of the agenda and associated material is available at https://www.sacta.org/ 
(click on “Meetings”).  Some documents may not be posted on-line because of size or format 
(maps, site plans, renderings).  Contact the Clerk’s Office at (916) 874-5411 to obtain copies of 
documents.   
 

ACCOMMODATIONS 
 
Requests for accommodations pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) should be 
made with the Clerk’s Office by telephone at (916) 874-5411 (voice) and CA Relay Services 711 
(for the hearing impaired) or BoardClerk@saccounty.net prior to the meeting. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
COMMENT ITEMS  
 

1. Comments From The Public Regarding Matters Not On The Agenda 
 

2. Executive Director’s Report Will Kempton 
 
CONSENT ITEMS   
 

3. Approve Action Summary: June 11, 2020 STA Governing Board Meeting ◄ Jennifer Doll 
 

4. Approve Action Summary: July 15, 2020 STA Special Governing Board  
         Meeting ◄ Jennifer Doll 
 

5. SacMetro Freeway Service Patrol Semiannual Report  Jennifer Doll 
 

6. Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System  
         User Licensing Agreement ◄ Jennifer Doll 
 

7. Measure A Fiscal Year 2019/20 4th Quarter Capital Projects Status Reports  Timothy Jones 
 

8. Authorization To Examines Sales And Use Tax Records ◄ Timothy Jones 
 

9. Revised Board Meeting Schedule For Calendar Year 2020 ◄ Will Kempton 
 
 

http://metro14live.saccounty.net/
https://www.sacta.org/


A G E N D A 
Sacramento Transportation Authority 

Sacramento Abandoned Vehicle Service Authority 
 

August 13, 2020 
 

Page 3 
 

SEPARATE ITEMS 
 

10. Approval Of Executive Director Recruitment Process And Appointment Of  Will Kempton        
Selection Committee ◄                                                                                                 

 
11. Comments Of Authority Members All 

 
◄ Denotes items that require Board action 

 
–  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – 

 
Staff reports and associated materials are available online at www.sacta.org. For assistance with agenda 
packets, please contact STA at (916) 323-0080 or info@sacta.org. For questions regarding the agenda or 

any item on the agenda, please contact Will Kempton at (916) 323-0080 or will@sacta.org.   

mailto:info@sacta.org
mailto:will@sacta.org


 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 2 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

Action Requested:  Receive and File 

Key Staff: Will Kempton, Executive Director 
 
Measure A Capital Improvement Program Update 
 
In last month’s Executive Director’s report, staff provided some brief comments regarding the status 
of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for the existing Measure A Program.  The report reiterated 
that the CIP has been affected by reductions in revenue originally anticipated for the program and 
debt service obligations which were not calculated in initial program projections.   
 
The Measure A Expenditure Plan approved by Sacramento County voters in November of 2004, 
included revenue estimates of $4.74 billion in sales tax receipts and $488 million in anticipated 
developer fees through the Sacramento County Transportation Mitigation Fee Program (SCTMFP).  
A $1.4 billion CIP was developed based on these revenue estimates and consistent with projects 
listed in the Expenditure Plan.  The CIP established allocation amounts to ten recipient agencies 
over the 30-year life of the Measure A Program (2009-2039).   
 
For most of the Measure program, allocations of annual revenue to recipient agencies are based on 
specific percentages and whatever revenue is received each year is distributed according to those 
percentages for spending on street and road  maintenance, other eligible funding categories, and  
special programs per the voter-approved Expenditure Plan.  The capital portion of the program is 
different in terms of identifying specific projects to be funded and the existing Measure’s CIP was put 
together based on expected revenue with specific dollar allocations to the identified capital projects.  
As a result, any reduction in revenue has an impact on the ability to fully fund the program.   
 
While the CIP was never formally adopted by the Governing Board, it has served to guide program 
expenditures.  However, as outlined above, changed circumstances have had a negative effect on 
the program.  To accelerate project delivery, a decision was made prior to the initiation of sales tax 
collections in 2009 to bond against anticipated revenue to pay for CIP projects that were ready to go.  
The resulting debt service and the cost of additional bonding has reduced available project funding.  
Additionally, at the start of the program period, a severe recession contributed to a drop in projected 
sales tax revenue and less than expected developer fees have added to the shortfall.  The net impact 
of these changes has resulted in a significant drop in dollars available for projects included in the 
capital program.  
 
In spite of these problems, CIP allocations have generally continued as originally programmed and 
contracts for funding commitments with recipient agencies have been extended based on agency  
 



 
August 13, 2020   
Item # 2  Page 2 
 

 
requests through the end of this fiscal year.  All contractual obligations for the CIP to date have or 
will be met.*  However, with a substantially reduced allocation capacity,  a number of projects initially 
programmed in the CIP will receive no or only partial funding for the remainder of the existing 
Measure A timeframe.   
 
As previously advised, staff has engaged an ad hoc committee of the Professional Advisory Group 
(PAG) to develop a recommended solution to this dilemma and the committee will be meeting over 
the next few months and intermittently with the full PAG  to come to consensus on a proposed 
strategy to determine how remaining CIP funds should be distributed.  The issue will then be brought 
to the Governing Board for a decision as to how the Authority should move forward.   
 
*Caltrans and the County have contracts which extend beyond the end of the 2020-21 FY.   
  
Re-initiation of Ten-Year Review of Process for Existing Measure A Expenditure Plan 
 
At the January 9, 2020 Sacramento Transportation Authority meeting, the Governing Board 
approved a resolution continuing the initial ten-year review of the existing Measure A Expenditure 
Plan which is required pursuant to Ordinance No. STA 04-01.  This action was taken due to the 
ongoing development at that time of a new ordinance and expenditure plan for a supplemental sales 
tax measure which has now been set aside.  The delay was also implemented  in the event that if a 
a new sales tax measure was placed on the November ballot and subsequently approved by the 
voters of Sacramento County, complementary changes could be considered for the existing 
Expenditure Plan to correlate with the  new measure.   
 
Now that the issue of a ballot measure has been settled, it is appropriate that the process to consider 
potential amendments or modifications to the existing plan in order to reflect changing transportation 
needs be resumed.  The resolution adopted in January requires that this process be completed by 
June 30, 2021, and staff will take steps in the next two months to formally re-initiate this effort.    
 
Proposed Legislative Joint Economic Stimulus Plan (SB 1351) 
 
Legislative leadership is working on a $100 billion plan intended to stimulate the State’s economy in 
the wake of the coronavirus pandemic.  The stimulus plan aims to raise $100 billion through a new 
tax voucher program and the acceleration of other existing revenue streams, including securitization 
of a portion of Senate Bill (SB) 1 funding to create jobs now and to improve key roads and highways 
to better support the economy.  Senator Beall, Chair of the Senate Transportation and Housing 
Committee, has amended his bill, SB 1351, to accomplish this purpose.   
 
Currently, SB 1 funding, after proscribed deductions for other transportation purposes, is deposited 
in the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account to be split equally between the State Highway 
Account and local governments (cities and counties).  SB 1351 would modify that split, transferring 
a sizeable piece of the Transportation Improvement Fee (TIF), an additional vehicle registration fee 
added by SB 1, to a TIF Subaccount and dedicating $250 million from that account for debt service. 
The California Transportation Commission would select projects for financing.   
 



 
August 13, 2020   
Item # 2  Page 3 
 

 
The TIF transfer would have otherwise been split 50%-50% between the state and local streets and 
roads, so it appears that there would be a reduction in the amount for cities and counties for 
maintenance and rehabilitation of $125 million a year.  While the concept of spending money on 
infrastructure and bringing dollars forward makes sense from the standpoint of stimulating the 
economy, the League of Cities and the California State Association of Counties are challenging the 
potential reduction in local street and road funding.  Negotiations are ongoing and, as of the time this 
report was prepared, no agreement on a solution had been reached.   
 
Rancho Cordova and Citrus Heights Sales Tax Proposals 
 
The City of Rancho Cordova will place a half-cent local sales tax measure on the November ballot 
this fall, raising the sales tax rate to 8.75% in that jurisdiction.    The proposal is for a general tax that 
will only require a simple majority of the electorate, and the purpose of the levy is to support City 
services, facilities and programs.  Likewise, the Citrus Heights City Council has approved a one-cent 
general sales tax measure for November to maintain vital city services identified by the community 
as priorities.  If approved by a majority of the voters, the sales tax rate in Citrus Heights will increase 
to 8.75% as well.   
  
These actions follow the repeal of Ordinance STA No. 20-001 and withdrawal of the Measure A 
transportation sales tax proposal at the Authority’s July meeting. 
 
Looking Ahead 
 
Staff expects to provide updated revenue projections and a potential amendment to the 2020-21 
fiscal year budget at the September meeting.  In addition, staff will be presenting a proposed process 
timeline at that meeting for resumption of the existing Measure A decennial review which was 
continued by resolution of the Governing Board at the January Authority meeting.  Finally, if the 
recruitment schedule on today’s agenda is approved, the Board will appoint a new and permanent 
Executive Director at the November meeting.   
  
 

 
 

 



 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 3 
 
APPROVE ACTION SUMMARY: JUNE 11, 2020 STA GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

Action Requested:  Approve 
Key Staff: Jennifer Doll, Special Programs Manager 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 
 
Approve the attached Action Summary of the June 11, 2020 meeting of the STA Governing Board.  
 
 
Attachment 

 
 











 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 4 
 
APPROVE ACTION SUMMARY: JULY 15, 2020 STA GOVERNING BOARD MEETING 

Action Requested:  Approve 
Key Staff: Jennifer Doll, Special Programs Manager 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 
 
Approve the attached Action Summary of the July 15, 2020 meeting of the STA Governing Board.  
 
 
Attachment 

 
 









 

Continued on back side  → 
 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 5 
 
SACMETRO FREEWAY SERVICE PATROL SEMIANNUAL STATUS REPORT  
FOR FY2020 YEAR END  

Action Requested:  Receive and File 
Key Staff: Jennifer Doll, Special Programs Manager 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

SacMetro FSP provided 15,168 assists and 276 motorists completed the online survey during the 
last two quarters of FY 2019/20. This is an increase of 2.63% from the same period last fiscal year 
with 14,780 completed assists.  
 

 

 



 
August 13, 2020   
Item # 5  Page 2 
 

 

 

Types of 
Problems 

 

Response 
Times 

 

Service 
Rating 

In the last two quarters of 
FY20, the majority of FSP 
assists, 69 percent, were 

related to accidents, 
mechanical problems, and 

flat tires. 

72 percent of motorists reported 
waiting less than 10 minutes 

before FSP appeared on 
scence, with 40 percent of those 

those waiting less than 5 
minutes. 

Of the 276 motorists who 
responded to the survey, 
100 percent rated the 
service as ‘excellent’. 

 

Of the 276 surveys received, 248 included written comments, most expressing thanks to the driver 
and/or indicating support for the program. Following are a few examples: 

 
• It's awesome service! Please keep it up  
• Perfect service, I was stuck on the freeway with just me and my infant, was so nice 

having someone to help me when I needed it most! Loved the service!  
• Thank you to John the driver for being there immediately and for his job well done. I am 

truly grateful 
• This is an excellent service and you have no idea how much I appreciated them showing 

up that morning. Don't know what it was in the road I hit to give me the flat tire. But I 
really appreciated them for getting me to work.  

• Blue Angel. That's how I will name him. Thanks Gianni!  
• Driver was extremely pleasant to speak with and had wonderful customer service skills. 

This is a great service  
• A great big thank you for being professional and knowing what to do very quickly! This 

service is very much appreciated! 
• An angel in disguise! So very grateful for the FSP driver taking me and my car to a safer 

location while I waited for roadside assistance to replace/repair tire! Very efficient and 
helpful! Thank you so much!!! 

• Roy was phenomenal!  He was like an angel that appeared to help me off the freeway 
after my accident and car would not start- ensured everyone was OK, called CHP, and 
got us all to a safe place off the freeway. I had no clue what FSP did until my accident 
and I am grateful they were there.  

• The driver was awesome, very helpful and understanding, great service and made a 
horrible experience with car trouble a little better to deal with. 

• I am thankful your driver was there and so helpful. Thank you for your services. 
• Very respectful people. Walt and Paul are very much appreciated  
• Great program and the driver would not accept a tip. he surely deserved it.  

 



 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM  
USER LICENSING AGREEMENT  

Action Requested:  Approve  

Key Staff: Jennifer Doll, Special Programs Manager 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 
 
Authorize the Executive Director to execute a 10-year User Licensing Agreement with the 
Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System for two-way radio communication and 
related services for the SacMetro Freeway Service Patrol program.  
 
Background 
 
The Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System (SRRCS) is a network of radio 
communications equipment that supports a regional public safety/public service partnership.  It 
provides a two-way voice radio communications capability for routine business and emergency 
purposes throughout Sacramento County and neighboring areas.   
 
The SacMetro Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) partners with the SRRCS for two-way radio 
communication between the Californian Highway Patrol (CHP) and FSP Drivers. The SRRCS 
partnership is vital to the communication between CHP 911-Disptachers, CHP Field Officers and 
the FSP Drivers.  
 
Discussion 
 
The SRRCS User Licensing Agreement must be renewed every 10-years and the existing 
agreement expired on June 30, 2020. There is an annual fee based on the number of radios 
assigned to the FSP program, which historically has been around $300 per radio. The Placer 
County FSP program is under our User Licensing Agreement so they annually reimburse the 
SacMetro FSP program for all their radio costs. Renewing the 10-year SRRCS User Licensing 
Agreement will allow the FSP program to continue its partnership with SRRCS, thus giving the FSP 
program and it’s CHP counterparts the necessary tools to communicate and assist the motoring 
public.  
 
 
Attachment 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

1 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 
RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 

LICENSING AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 1st day of July, 2020, by and 
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, a political subdivision of the State of California 
and the SACRAMENTO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (hereinafter referred to as 
“Agency”) which are collectively referred to as the "parties."  
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, a spirit of cooperation and collaboration has been demonstrated by several 
public agencies in the Sacramento area to develop a regional solution to meet the individual radio 
communications need of each agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Sacramento, in coordination with several public safety and 
public service entities, has developed the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors contracted for the construction 
of the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System includes a 
backbone communications system and end user equipment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Participants have pooled their individual frequencies and rights granted 
by the FCC; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Transportation Authority desires to contract with the County 
of Sacramento for a license for use of the backbone communications system. 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE FOREGOING AND THE PROMISES 
HEREIN CONTAINED, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

A. AGREEMENT is defined as this Sacramento Regional Radio Communications 
System Licensing Agreement. 

 
B. ANNUAL BACKBONE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION FEE is defined as 

the annual fee necessary to recover the direct costs incurred by the County of 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

2 

Sacramento for maintenance and operation of the Backbone and shall include, but 
not be limited to, the following: 

 
1) Labor rates for County of Sacramento personnel assigned to work on or 

administer the Backbone.  These rates will be the same as those charged by the 
County of Sacramento Department of Technology to County of Sacramento 
Departments for the same labor classes.  These rates will be monitored and 
periodically adjusted by the Chief Information Officer as needed to minimize 
the variance between applied and actual costs.  This rate structure is currently 
subject to federal and state audits for purposes of assuring compliance with 
grant and funding regulations. 

 
2) Costs of all labor, materials, and supplies furnished or purchased for 

performance of maintenance of the Backbone, including the costs for any 
repairs, equipment upgrades, or replacements. 

  
3) All-Risk Property insurance costs, including reserves for deductibles, for the 

Backbone.     
 

4) Such other direct administrative, financial, and operating costs and charges as 
are commonly and prudently included in maintenance and operation costs by 
standard accounting practices, including any legal fees incurred by SRRCS as 
a result of any action brought against SRRCS and/or any of the Participants 
relating to services provided by SRRCS. 

 
C. BACKBONE is defined as: 

 
1) All trunk repeater site equipment including transmitters, receivers, and 

supporting electronic equipment; buildings, towers, and power sources. 
 

2) All electronic or other equipment or leased services used to interconnect the 
trunk repeater sites. 

 
3) All electronic or other equipment or leased services used to connect dispatch 

centers to the trunk repeater sites. 
 

4) The electronic equipment in the various dispatch centers that appears on the 
Backbone side of the Demark Point and is used to translate the signals to a 
suitable audio or digital signal for use by the dispatch center. 

 
D. DEMARK POINT is defined as a location, a point, or a set of points in the same 

general area, where signals are transferred from the Backbone to End User 
Equipment. 

 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

3 

E. CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER of the County of Sacramento is defined as the 
Director, Department of Technology or Director of another County of Sacramento 
Department to the extent either has been assigned oversight of the Sacramento 
Regional Radio Communications System by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
F. END USER EQUIPMENT is defined as all equipment purchased by and under the 

control of the Participants. 
 

G. FCC is defined as the Federal Communications Commission of the United States. 
 

H. PARTICIPANTS shall be defined as any public agency or municipality, which 
enters into an agreement similar to this Agreement with the County of Sacramento 
and is issued a license to use the Backbone by the County of Sacramento.  The 
current Participants are listed in Attachment 2. 

 
I. PUBLIC SAFETY is defined as law enforcement, fire protection, emergency 

medical services, and emergency operations. 
 

J. RADIO is defined as any mobile, portable, control station or base station radio.  
Although Radios purchased and used solely as maintenance spares are considered 
as Radios under this definition, such spare Radios shall not be included in the 
calculation of fees (other than purchase and installation costs of the Radios), voting 
rights, or other apportionment under this Agreement.  . 

 
K. SCHEDULE is defined as the listing of the total number of Radios to be purchased 

by Agency as approved by the SMG and attached hereto as Attachment 1. 
 

L. SECONDARY SYSTEM USER is defined as an agency, which has received 
approval from the SMG to access the System on a separate revocable contract 
through one of the System Participants. 

 
M. SMG is defined as the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System 

Management Group, which is comprised as set forth in Article 4. 
 

N. SYSTEM is defined as the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System.     
 

O. SYSTEM MANAGER is defined as the Chief Information Officer. 
 

P. TAC is defined as the Sacramento Regional Radio Communications System 
Technical Advisory Committee, which is comprised as set forth in Article 4. 

 
Q. SYSTEM BUY-IN FEE is defined as the non-refundable total amount to be paid to 

the County of Sacramento in a lump sum for participation in (non-refundable) the 
System.   



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

4 

 
R. VENDOR is defined as the company selected by County of Sacramento to design 

and supply the System. 
 
2. LICENSE - TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

During the term of this Agreement and so long as AGENCY is not in significant breach of 
its terms and conditions, County of Sacramento grants to AGENCY a revocable non-
exclusive license to use the Backbone and the System and all components thereof.  

 
This Agreement is effective as of the day and year first hereinabove appearing and shall 
continue thereafter from year to year until July 1, 2030, unless terminated pursuant to 
Article 3, 16, or 17.   

 
The parties acknowledge that the Backbone was designed to meet the radio communication 
needs of the Participants.   

 
If no major capital investment is required to operate the Backbone, then AGENCY and the 
other Participants shall only be required to pay the County of Sacramento their pro rata 
share of the County of Sacramento's Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee.  

 
If at any time during the term of this Agreement, it becomes necessary as the result of the 
action of the FCC or other regulatory or legislative body to expend more money than is 
available in reserves for the purpose of bringing the System into compliance, AGENCY 
shall pay its pro rata share thereof based upon the formula set forth in Article 8, or, in the 
absence of an acceptable agreement to do so, the parties will treat participation under this 
Agreement as having been terminated for convenience pursuant to the following paragraph 
and Article 16. 

 
In the event this Agreement terminates, the parties shall negotiate in good faith among 
themselves and the other Participants to arrive at a mutual and satisfactory solution to their 
then existing radio communications problems.  To the greatest extent possible, this solution 
shall involve sharing of facilities and costs and making use of existing facilities or sites. 

 
3. MAJOR CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
 

The determination whether a major capital investment(s) is required to continue operation 
of the Backbone shall be made by the SMG with the advice of the TAC or an independent 
consultant as it deems necessary.  The costs, if any, of the determination shall be divided 
proportionately according to number of Radios owned and operated among the total 
number of Participants remaining at the time of the determination. 
 
If major capital investment is required to operate the Backbone to extend its useful life, the 
parties agree that they shall negotiate in good faith with each other and all of the other 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

5 

Participants to address the terms for financing of the procurement and installation costs of 
major capital improvements to the Backbone.  If the parties cannot agree to the financing 
terms for such an investment, the County of Sacramento shall no longer be obligated to 
operate and maintain the Backbone for the benefit of AGENCY or the other Participants, 
and AGENCY shall no longer be entitled to access the Backbone. 
 

 
4. SMG AND TAC - CREATION, ORGANIZATION, AND AUTHORITY 
 

A. SMG 
 

1)      The voting membership of the SMG shall have one member appointed by 
     each Participant. 

 
                                    Each appointing authority shall appoint one alternate voting member who 
                                    Shall have full authority to act in the absence of the member to whom he  
                                    or she is alternate. All appointments of voting members and alternates shall  
                                    be communicated in writing to the Chief Information Officer, or the 
                                    successor thereto, who shall act as Secretary to the SMG. Each Participant 
                                    shall appoint such auxiliary non-voting members to the SMG as it deems  
                                    appropriate.   

 
These members shall have full rights to participate in all SMG activities and 
discussions, except voting.  It is expected that each Participant will appoint 
sufficient members to fully represent all of its communication interests and 
to provide an SMG of sufficient breadth and depth of knowledge and 
experience to adequately carry out its responsibilities.  Each Participant 
shall notify in writing or by Email the Chief Information Officer or his 
designated representative of all such appointments and of the termination or 
expiration thereof. 

 
2). The SMG shall meet on a periodic basis and when requested by the Chief 

Information Officer or a voting SMG member, but such frequency shall be 
not less than semi-annually, at a time and place designated by the SMG 
Chair who shall provide written notice thereof to the members and alternates 
at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  Such notice shall include a 
proposed agenda.  Sufficient voting members to carry a majority of the 
voting power of the SMG shall constitute a quorum thereof.   

 
            A majority of the voting power of the full SMG shall be required to act, 

except for expenditure of reserve funds for essential modifications, which 
requires a two-thirds vote.  Each voting member of the SMG shall have one 
vote for each Radio, which is part of the System and is owned or controlled 
by his or her agency. The radio count will be determined by the annual 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

6 

snapshot conducted in January by the County of Sacramento for annual 
billing purposes. 

 
3) The SMG shall have the authority to: 

 
a) Elect officers and conduct meetings.  The Chair of the SMG shall be 

elected from among the membership of the SMG for a term of two years.  
The term will begin on July 1.  The Chair may serve additional terms if 
nominated and elected. 
 

b) Advise the Chief Information Officer as to all matters relative to the 
                                         construction, expansion, operation, and management of the System. 
 

c) Approve new Participants and Secondary/Paid Secondary System Users 
of the System.  The County of Sacramento may not allow additional 
Secondary System Users, nor enter into Agreements with new 
Participants, without the consent of the SMG.  If a new user is a 
Participant, the SMG shall determine the appropriate fee structure for 
the Backbone pursuant to Article 12.  

 
      The Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee on account of a  
      Paid Secondary System User shall be the same as if the Secondary  
      System User were an individual Participant, except that the SMG may  
      specify a usage level for the Paid Secondary System User and 
      may reduce its fees by factors, which the SMG considers appropriate,  
      which factors need not be the same for both Fees. 

 
d) Determine how much capacity, if any, is available to a Participant who 

wishes to reenter the system after termination of participation pursuant 
to Article 16 ("terminating party").In making such determination the 
SMG shall consider on the one hand that the terminating party has paid 
or is obligated to pay for certain capacity in the Backbone, and, on the 
other hand, any commitments of such capacity to other Participants or 
users, it being the intention of the parties to this Agreement that reentry 
by any such terminating party shall not be permitted if such reentry 
causes an unreasonable exhaustion of capacity, diminution of 
reasonable expectations as to growth and capabilities, or shortening of 
the expected life of the System beyond that which might reasonably 
have been expected had the  terminating party not terminated 
participation and the vacated capacity been otherwise committed. No 
credits will be paid for previously paid Buy-in Fee to terminating party. 

 
e) Approve expenditure of reserve funds for essential modifications by a 

two-thirds vote of the total voting power of the SMG. 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

7 

 
f) Establish procedures for, consider, and, to the extent possible, resolve 

all disputes between the parties or any of the Participants. 
 

g) To perform such other duties and carry out such other powers as are set 
forth throughout this Agreement. 

 
B. TAC 

 
1) The membership of the TAC shall be one member appointed by each 

Participant. 
 

Each Participant may provide additional members to represent the interests 
of the Participant. Representatives on the TAC shall jointly provide services 
in kind without compensation from the System funding. 

 
2) The TAC shall meet on a periodic basis and when requested by a TAC 

member, the SMG or the Chief Information Officer, but such frequency 
shall be not less than semi-annually, at a time and place designated by the 
chairperson of the TAC. 

 
3) The TAC shall be the primary body for the review and discussion of 

technical performance issues concerning the operations, reliability, and 
maintenance of the System.  The TAC shall advise and make suggestions 
and recommendations concerning operations, reliability, and maintenance 
for the chairperson to carry forward to the SMG or Chief Information 
Officer for review and policy direction. 

 
5. DESIGN OF THE BACKBONE 
 

The County of Sacramento shall procure and install the Backbone. The parties 
acknowledge that the Backbone may be designed and constructed at an operational 
efficiency level, which is less than the optimum design capacity of the Backbone as a means 
of reducing the costs of procurement and installation of the Backbone.  The initial level of 
operation was essentially determined with input and advice from the SMG and the TAC.  
The continuing enhancements shall be determined by the Chief Information Officer with 
input and advice from the SMG and the TAC. 

 
6. OWNERSHIP OF BACKBONE 
 

County of Sacramento shall hold legal title to all equipment comprising the Backbone 
during the term of this Agreement and upon its expiration, termination, or cancellation. 

 
7. MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF BACKBONE 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

8 

 
County of Sacramento shall be solely responsible for maintenance and operation of the 
Backbone, including the costs for any repairs and replacements, and subject to recovery of 
costs therefore pursuant to Articles 1 and 8 hereof.  County of Sacramento shall devote as 
much staff time as it deems necessary for Backbone operations to minimize any downtime 
or disruptions to radio communications by Participants. 

 
8. ANNUAL BACKBONE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION FEE 
 

AGENCY shall pay the County of Sacramento an annual fee for Maintenance and 
Operation of the Backbone each year during the term of this Agreement to be calculated as 
follows: 

 
Where: 

 
c  = The total number of radios owned and operated by AGENCY as of January 1st of 

each year or the number of radios AGENCY intends to operate on execution of this 
agreement whichever is greater.  

 
d  = The total number of Radios owned and operated by all Participants as of January 

1st of each year 
 

g  = Total annual County of Sacramento Maintenance and Operation Costs as set forth 
in the definition of Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee in Section B 
of Article 1 above. 

 
The County of Sacramento shall send AGENCY an invoice for the amount of the Annual 
Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee on or about May 1st of each year.  This fee shall 
be due and payable not later than July 1st of each year.  Interest shall accrue at the rate of 
ten percent (10%) per annum from the July 1 due date. 

 
INITIAL PAYMENT The initial payment of the Annual Backbone Maintenance and 
Operation Fee payment shall be pro-rated for the first year of participation in the system.  
The formula for fee calculation for the initial payment shall be calculated as follows: 
 
(Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operations Fee per radio for fiscal year Agency 
executes the agreement) X (days until June 30) / 365. 
 

g x c
d

 =  Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee  



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

9 

Significant Increase in Radio Count During the Year: If AGENCY adds 10%, or more, 
additional radios during the fiscal year the County of Sacramento may send AGENCY a 
supplemental invoice which shall be payable on receipt.  

 
9. PURCHASE OF END USER EQUIPMENT 
 

County of Sacramento agrees that AGENCY may purchase its End User Equipment 
directly from an equipment vendor, using County of Sacramento contracts if available.  The 
parties acknowledge that all warranties for such equipment are only enforceable against 
the vendor and County of Sacramento makes no express or implied warranty for End User 
Equipment. 

 
10. PURCHASE AND USE OF SECONDARY SYSTEM USER EQUIPMENT 
 

AGENCY may purchase End User Equipment for Secondary System Users (or may 
authorize such Secondary System User to purchase directly pursuant to the terms of the 
County of Sacramento’s contracts) if available for use within the System provided: 

 
 

A. The Secondary System User agrees in writing that it will comply with all applicable 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, all applicable regulatory requirements, and 
all rules, regulations, and policies pertaining to System usage. 

 
B. AGENCY shall be responsible to County of Sacramento for payment of all amounts 

due to County of Sacramento as a result of the purchase and use of such equipment. 
 

Any Secondary System User shall enter into a written agreement with the Participant 
through whom its System usage is derived in the form provided by the County of 
Sacramento.  Such agreement shall be subject to all terms and conditions developed by the 
SMG.  If applicable, the agreement shall provide for the Annual Backbone Maintenance 
and Operation Fee to be paid on account of a Secondary System User in accordance with 
the determination of the SMG.  Such Fees shall be paid to the County of Sacramento by 
the Participant through whom the System usage is derived. 
 
The proposed agreement between the Participant and Secondary User shall be submitted 
to the TAC for review unless waived by TAC or SMG.  If submitted to TAC for review, 
TAC may provide a recommendation to the SMG.  The SMG must approve all agreements 
for Secondary System Users.  
 
In the event the Secondary System User ceases participation in the System, the Radios used 
by it may be taken out of operation, in which case both Fees will cease at the end of the 
then current fiscal year, or may be continued in usage by the Participant, in which case the 
Fees will be charged to the Participant on the same basis as all other Radios owned by the 
Participant. 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

10 

 
 
11. OPERATION OF RADIOS 
 

The County of Sacramento shall assign an identification number for each Radio purchased 
pursuant to and during the term of this Agreement.  No Radio or other device may be placed 
in use within the System without first being approved as to compatibility by the SMG or 
the System Manager. 

 
12. SYSTEM OPERATIONS 
 

County of Sacramento and AGENCY agree that policy or management decisions regarding 
the design of the Backbone and the level of operation and maintenance of the System shall 
be under the jurisdiction of the Chief Information Officer.  The Chief Information Officer 
shall be responsible for administration of this Agreement and the System.  The SMG shall 
advise the Chief Information Officer in accordance with Article 4.  In the event the Chief 
Information Officer reports to County of Sacramento's Board of Supervisors and any 
recommendation therein is contrary to advice rendered by the SMG, the Chief Information 
Officer shall state to the Board of Supervisors the position of the SMG. The Chief 
Information Officer shall inform the SMG of the date and time of the Board Report to give 
the SMG representative an opportunity to present the position of the SMG.  The SMG 
representative shall be selected from those members of the SMG representing the majority 
opinion.  Technical operation decisions shall be subject to the advice of the TAC with the 
approval of the SMG. 

 
The Chief Information Officer, with the advice and consent of the SMG, may make rules, 
regulations and policies with respect to the System and its usage, and all users shall comply 
with those rules, regulations, and policies.  In addition, all users shall comply with all 
applicable provisions of this Agreement and with all applicable regulations of the FCC or 
any other governmental agency having jurisdiction over System usage. 

 
The Chief Information Officer shall issue annually to all Participants a financial statement 
showing the financial condition of the System.  Such statement need not be reviewed by 
an independent accountant unless the SMG so directs and approves the necessary 
expenditure.  An annual proposed budget shall be prepared and distributed to all 
Participants and the SMG at least 30 days prior to its final adoption. 

 
The County of Sacramento may contract with any Participant or Secondary System User 
for additions or improvements to the System provided that the cost thereof is borne in a 
manner which does not affect non-consenting parties and the additions or improvements 
are approved by the SMG. 

 
The County of Sacramento may contract with additional agencies for use of the System.  
Any such contract shall be upon essentially the same terms and conditions as this 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

11 

Agreement and shall provide that such new Participant shall have the same rights, duties, 
and obligations as the original Participants.  Any such contract shall require the payment 
by the new Participant of an appropriate Buy-In Fee that recognizes the contributions of 
the participating agencies in the development of the radio system.  The Buy-In Fee shall 
be in an amount recommended to the Chief Information Officer by the SMG. 
 
Any such contract shall be first approved by the SMG as to availability of capacity.  Any 
such contract may provide for a lump sum payment of the Buy-In fee or may allow the new 
Participant to pay such fee with interest over a period of time acceptable to the SMG. 
 
AGENCY shall pay the Buy-In Fee in the amount and in the manner described in 
Attachment 1; or, as an alternative to the Buy-In Fee, AGENCY may substitute 
compensation in the form and amount as described in Attachment 1. 

 
13. FREQUENCY ALLOCATION 
 

The County of Sacramento and AGENCY agree that if additional frequency capacity is 
desired to be added to the System, AGENCY, after approval by the SMG, may apply to 
the FCC for a license and shall pay all applicable fees. 
 
Several of the Participants have frequencies that have been assigned to them by the FCC.  
The parties agree that these frequencies will be pooled for use by all of the Participants and 
users during the term of this Agreement and shall be subject to the management of the 
County of Sacramento and the System Manager.  Each Participant retains all rights to the 
frequencies it has pooled. 

 
14. PUBLIC SAFETY PRIORITY 
 

The County of Sacramento and AGENCY agree that Public Safety shall be given priority 
access to the communications functions of the System over other uses of the Backbone. 

 
15.       RADIO SYSTEM COVERAGE  
 
            The County of Sacramento makes no warranty or guarantee of any kind whatsoever  
            including but not limited to indoor and outdoor radio coverage.  The County of Sacramento  
            has no role in resolution of indoor radio coverage issues/complaints in any type of  
            buildings or structures. Indoor radio coverage and solutions either by BDA’s or DAS 
            systems are governed by the local Fire Marshall and the local Fire codes and ordinances.  
 
            Outdoor radio coverage issues/complaints will be reviewed by the County of Sacramento.  
            The County of Sacramento will make a determination if the problem is being caused by 
            interference/equipment malfunction or by inadequate system coverage in that area. If  
            interference is found, the County of Sacramento will attempt to intervene with the  
            responsible parties to eliminate the source of interference to the extent determined  



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

12 

            appropriate by the County of Sacramento. SRRCS will attempt to repair all Backbone  
            malfunctions in a timely manner.  
 
            Upon receiving a complaint of outdoor coverage problems and at the request of a     
            Participant, if outdoor radio coverage problems are due to inadequate radio Delivered  
            Audio Quality (DAQ) of  3.4, and cannot be resolved without new construction of radio  
            facilities, The County of Sacramento will request a meeting with the SMG to inform them  
            of the findings and discuss a solution to fund any new construction to resolve the issues, if 
            possible to the extent determined appropriate by the County of Sacramento. 
             
      
16. TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION FOR CONVENIENCE 
 

AGENCY may terminate its participation in use of the Backbone pursuant to this 
Agreement for its convenience at any time upon 120 days advance written notice.  In the 
event that participation is terminated, AGENCY shall no longer be entitled to access the 
Backbone or membership on the SMG or TAC, and shall be relieved from payment of the 
Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operation Fee on a prorated basis for the Backbone 
until such time as AGENCY elects to recommence participation by providing 120 days 
advance written notice of its election.  Any such recommencement of participation shall be 
effective as of July 1st next following the expiration of the 120 day notice period, and will 
require a new licensing agreement.  

 
17. CANCELLATION FOR BREACH 
 

Should either party fail to substantially perform its obligations in accordance with the 
Agreement provisions, the other party shall thereupon have the right to serve upon the 
breaching party a written notice of breach and requirement to cure.  The notice shall advise 
the other party of the nature of the breach and provide a reasonable opportunity to cure.  
 
Such opportunity shall provide a minimum of 30 days (seven days in the case of non-
payment of money) following the date of service in which to cure the default, or, if the 
default is of such a nature that it cannot reasonably be cured within 30 days, to provide a 
plan for curing and to commence the cure and diligently prosecute it to completion. 
 
If the breaching party fails to cure within the period specified, the other party may serve 
upon the breaching party written notice of cancellation specifying the reasons therefore and 
the date of cancellation, which shall not be sooner than 30 days following the date the 
notice is served. 

 
If AGENCY cancels for breach and it is subsequently determined that County of 
Sacramento did not fail to substantially perform its obligations in accordance with the 
Agreement, then cancellation for breach by AGENCY shall be deemed and treated as 
termination of participation for convenience. 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

13 

 
The parties agree that the rights granted under this Agreement for use of the System are 
unique, and in the event of a breach of the Agreement by either party, the remedy of 
cancellation may be inadequate.  Therefore, in the event of a material breach by either 
party, the other party shall be entitled to the remedy of specific performance and any other 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
18. REMEDIES OF COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO UPON TERMINATION OR 

BREACH 
 

1) In the event of termination by AGENCY of participation for convenience, County 
of Sacramento shall continue to bill AGENCY for all radios that continue to operate 
on the Backbone, and AGENCY shall be obligated to continue to pay such billings 
in the same time and manner as had there been no termination. 

 
2) In the event of the failure of AGENCY to make any payment required herein when 

due, County of Sacramento may bring an action for the recovery of such payment 
and interest thereon.  With respect to payments not yet due at the time of breach, 
County of Sacramento may bring an action, or actions, from time to time as such 
payments become due.  The exercise of any right provided in this Agreement shall 
not preclude the County of Sacramento from exercising any other right so provided 
or at law, remedies provided herein or at law being cumulative and not exclusive. 

 
3) If AGENCY has terminated participation in accordance with Article 16, the County 

of Sacramento shall be free to contract for and license the use of any capacity 
previously used by and any frequencies pooled by AGENCY pursuant to the 
provisions of this Agreement, which are not taken by AGENCY upon termination 
of participation.  Any right of AGENCY to revoke the termination and rejoin the 
system shall be subject to availability of capacity and frequencies at the time of re-
application. 

 
4)          If this Agreement is terminated for any reason, there shall be no refund to AGENCY 

of any Buy-in Fee paid by AGENCY.  
 
19. INDEMNIFICATION 
            

To the extent permitted by law, each party hereto agrees to defend, indemnify, protect, save 
and keep harmless the other party and its respective governing board, directors, officers, 
employees, authorized agents and volunteers, and its successors and assigns from and 
against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, fines, claims, actions, 
suits, costs and expenses and disbursements (including legal fees and expenses) of any kind 
and nature imposed in, asserted against, incurred or suffered by such indemnified party or 
its directors, officers or employees or its successors and assigns by reason of damage, loss 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

14 

or injury (including death) of any kind or nature whatsoever to persons or property caused 
by or in any way relating to or arising out of: 

 
(i) any negligent act or action, or any neglect, omission or failure to act when under a duty 
to act on the part of  the indemnifying party or any of its governing board, directors, 
officers, authorized agents and volunteers, or employees in its or their performance 
hereunder; or; 

 
(ii) violation by the indemnifying party or any of its governing board, directors, 
Officers, authorized agents and volunteers, or employees of any applicable federal, state or 
local laws and ordinances, and any and all lawful orders, rules and regulations issued by 
any authority with jurisdiction over the System. 
 
It is the intent of the parties that, where the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 
the parties, their respective boards, directors, officers, authorized agents and volunteers, 
or employees are determined to have been contributory, the principals of comparative 
negligence as applied and followed and each party shall bear the proportionate cost 
attributable to its own negligent or intentional acts or omissions. 

 
The parties shall establish procedures to notify the other party where appropriate of any 
claims, administrative actions, or legal actions with respect to any of the matters 
described in this indemnification provision.  The parties shall cooperate in the defense of 
such actions brought by others with respect to the matters covered in this indemnity.  This 
indemnity obligation shall not be limited by the types and amounts of insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the parties. Nothing set forth in this Agreement shall establish a 
standard of care for, or create any legal rights in, any person not a party to this 
Agreement. The provisions of this indemnity obligation shall survive the expiration or 
termination of the Agreement. 
 
County of Sacramento's indemnification costs shall not be subject to recoupment as a 
Backbone operating cost.  

 
 
20.      INSURANCE or SELF-INSURANCE 
 
           Each party (COUNTY & AGENCY), at its sole cost and expense, shall carry insurance –  
           or self-insure - its activities in connection with this Agreement, and obtain, keep in force 
           and maintain, insurance or equivalent programs of self-insurance, for general liability and  
           workers compensation adequate to cover its potential liabilities hereunder.  Each party  
           agrees to provide the other thirty (30) days' advance written notice of any cancellation,  
           termination or lapse of any of the insurance or self-insurance coverages.  Failure to maintain  
           insurance as required in this Agreement is a material breach of contract and may be grounds  
           for termination of the Agreement. 
 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

15 

 
21. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES 
 

Nothing herein shall be construed to create, nor do the County of Sacramento or AGENCY 
intend to create by the terms hereof, any contractual or other relationship, whether 
expressed or implied, of joint power, joint venture, partnership, principal-agent, 
independent contractor, or master-servant.  It is expressly contemplated by the parties that 
the County of Sacramento will execute with each of the Participants an agreement 
essentially the same as this agreement and that those agreements and this Agreement will 
be considered together and will form the legal framework for the System.  Any amendment 
to this form Agreement between County of Sacramento and any Participant for the benefit 
of a Participant shall first be approved by the SMG and shall be offered to all other 
Participants. 

 
22.  ASSIGNMENT - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 

Neither party may assign this Agreement in whole or in part, nor any right, duty, or 
obligation provided herein, without the express written consent of the other party.  The 
rights and liabilities set forth herein shall inure to the benefit and bind successors and 
assigns of the parties to this Agreement but shall not inure to the benefit of any third party 
or person.  (remove comma) 

 
23. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 
 

The County of Sacramento shall maintain for a period of three years all books, records, 
documents, and other evidence directly pertinent to work under the Agreement in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and practices.  The County of 
Sacramento shall also maintain for a period of three years the financial information and 
data used by County of Sacramento in the preparation or support of the proposed or actual 
costs under the Agreement.  

 
24. AUDIT 
 

The County of Sacramento agrees to permit AGENCY, or its duly authorized 
representatives, to inspect all work, materials, payrolls and other data and records in 
regards to any proposed or actual costs under this Agreement at any reasonable time during 
the term of this Agreement.  The County of Sacramento shall have the right to inspect and 
audit at any reasonable time the books, records and facilities of AGENCY relating to the 
System for the purpose of assuring compliance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
25. NOTICES 
 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

16 

Termination of participation or cancellation of this Agreement pursuant to the provisions 
set forth above and any other communications required during administration of this 
Agreement shall be written and given by delivery service company, personal service or by 
regular U.S. mail addressed as follows: 

 
TO AGENCY: Sacramento Transportation Authority 
 Attn: FSP 

Jennifer Doll 
801 12th Street, 5th Flr 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
 

TO COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO:  
SRRCS System Manager 
Department of Technology  
County of Sacramento 
799 G Street 
Sacramento CA 95814 

 
Notice shall be effective upon receipt if personally served or delivered by delivery service 
company, and three days after mailing if served by regular mail.  Any party who desires to 
change its address for notice may do so by giving notice as set forth herein. 

 
26. GOVERNING LAW 
 

The interpretation and enforcement of the Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of California.  The parties agree to submit any disputes arising under the Agreement 
to a court of competent jurisdiction located in Sacramento County, California. 

 
27. NONWAIVER 
 

Waiver of any breach or default hereunder shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a 
waiver of any subsequent breach either of the same or of another provision of this 
Agreement. 

 
28. MODIFICATION 
 

No waiver, alteration, modification, or termination of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by the authorized parties hereof. 

 
29. COUNTERPARTS 
 
            This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute but one and the same 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

17 

instrument.  Signatures scanned and transmitted electronically shall be deemed original 
signatures for purposes of this Agreement, with such scanned signatures having the same 
legal effect as original signatures. This Agreement may be executed through the use of an 
electronic or digital signature and will be binding on each party as if it were physically 
executed. 

 
30. CAPTIONS 
 

The headings or captions to the Articles of this Agreement are not a part of the Agreement 
and shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part thereof. 

 
31. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in effect. 

 
32. SURVIVORSHIP 
 

Any responsibility for insurance or indemnity with respect to services provided under this 
Agreement shall not be invalidated due to the expiration, termination, or cancellation of 
this Agreement. 

 
33. MEDIATION 
 

In the event of a dispute between the parties arising under the terms of this Agreement, the 
parties shall submit their dispute to the SMG for review prior to initiating any legal 
proceedings.  The SMG shall hold a hearing at which each party shall be entitled to present 
its case.  The determination of the SMG regarding the merits of the claim and its proposed 
resolution shall be non-binding.  Each party shall be responsible for their own costs of 
mediation.  

 
34. ARBITRATION 
 
            If, at any time, there occurs a controversy or dispute regarding the rights, duties and  
            obligations of the parties concerning any provision set forth in this entire Agreement,  
            excluding a dispute over the payment of money due under Article 18 (2), such controversy  
            or dispute if not resolved by non-binding dispute resolution shall be conclusively  
            determined by arbitration as follows: 
 

A. Within 10 days after notice by any party to the other requesting arbitration, one arbitrator 
shall be appointed for each party by that party.  Notice of such appointment when made 
shall be given by that party to the other. 

 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

18 

B. The two arbitrators shall forthwith choose a third arbitrator after appointment of the second 
to act with them.  If either party fails to appoint an arbitrator or if the two arbitrators shall 
fail to choose a third arbitrator within twenty (20) days of the appointment of the second, 
upon application of either party, an arbitrator or the third arbitrator shall then be promptly 
appointed by the then presiding judge of the Superior court of the State of California in and 
for the County of Sacramento acting in his or her individual capacity. 

 
C. Except as provided herein to the contrary, the arbitration shall be in conformity with and 

subject to sections 1280 through 1294.4 of the Code of Civil Procedure of California. 
 

D. The arbitrators shall conduct hearings in the City of Sacramento, State of California.  The 
arbitrators shall proceed with due dispatch and shall, if reasonably possible, make a 
decision within sixty days after the appointment of third arbitrator.  The decision of any 
two of three arbitrators shall be binding, final and conclusive on the parties.  Such decision 
shall be in writing and delivered to the parties in such form that a judgment may be entered 
in any court of the State of California having jurisdiction thereof. 

 
E. Each party shall pay all costs of the arbitrator appointed by that party.  All other costs of 

the arbitration shall be shared equally. 
 
The arbitrators appointed pursuant to this provision shall be independent and knowledgeable in 
radio communication matters as well as the subject matter of the dispute or controversy.  It is 
agreed that the decision of the arbitrators may include equitable remedies, as the arbitrators may 
deem appropriate.  In the event of emergency or other circumstances, which require a decision of 
the arbitrators sooner than the above timetable will permit, the arbitrators shall meet and confer 
immediately upon appointment and establish a timetable to complete the arbitration and render a 
decision on a timely basis as required by the circumstances 
 
35. AMBIGUITIES 
 

The parties have each carefully reviewed this Agreement and have agreed to each term of 
this Agreement.  No ambiguity shall be presumed to be construed against either party. 

 
36. INTEGRATION 
 

This Agreement embodies the entire agreement of the parties in relation to the scope of 
services herein described, and no other understanding whether verbal, written, or otherwise 
exists between the parties. 

 
37. AMENDMENTS 
 

This agreement may be modified by presentation of the proposed changes and affirmative 
majority vote of the SMG. All amendments must be written and signed by both parties.  

  



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement on the day and year first 
hereinabove appearing. 
 
 
COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO AGENCY 
a Political Subdivision of Sacramento Transportation Authority 
the State of California  
  
  
  
By: _______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
      Chief Information Officer        Will Kempton, Executive Director 
  
  
  
Approved as to Form Approved as to Form 
  
  
  
By: ________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
        Supervising Deputy County Counsel       Legal Counsel 

 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

20 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
LICENSING AGREEMENT 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

 
 

Schedule of Intended Radio Acquisitions  
 
 
APPLICANT AGENCY: NAME 
 
 
Number of Operational Radios:  
 
  
 
Buy-In Fee:      # radios x $rate per radio  =  $fee  
 
Rate per radio effective for date is $x 
 
 
 
Pro-rated Annual Backbone Maintenance and Operations Fee and Fee for Enhancements shall be 
based on the following: 
 
 Per radio fee for FY     =  $ 
     Effective (insert start date) Pro-rated rate is $XX.XX 
 
All Fees are payable within 30 days of execution of this Agreement. 
  

NOT APPLICABLE TO RENEWALS 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

21 

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL RADIO COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM 
LICENSING AGREEMENT 

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

 
 

Current SRRCS Participants  

 
 Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) 
 California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation 
 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
 City of Davis including Davis Police and Fire  
 City of Citrus Heights including the Police and other City departments 
 City of Folsom including the Police and other City departments 
 City of Elk Grove including the Police and other City departments 
 City of Galt including the Police and other City departments 
 City of Rancho Cordova including other City departments 
 City of Sacramento including the Police, Fire, and other City departments 
 City of West Sacramento including the Police, Fire, and other City departments 
 County of Sacramento including the Sacramento Sheriff’s Department, the Department of  
 Airports, the Coroner, the District Attorney, and other County departments 
 Elk Grove Unified School District 
 Elk Grove Water Service 
 Fulton-El Camino Park District Police Department 
 Los Rios Community College District 
 Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center including Cosumnes River 
 Community Services District Fire Department, Courtland Fire Protection District, Folsom Fire  
 Department, Herald Fire Protection District, Sacramento City Fire Department, Sacramento 
 Metropolitan Fire District, Walnut Grove Fire Protection District, Wilton Fire Protection  
 District, and the hospital’s within the regional area 
 Rancho Murieta Community Services District 
 Sacramento Regional Transit District 
 Sacramento Transportation Authority 
 Twin Rivers Unified School District Police Services 
 UC Davis including Police, Fire Campus and Hospital 
 Washington Unified School District  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
AGREEMENT/Sacramento Transportation Authority July 1, 2020 

22 

 
ATTACHMENT 3 

                                          
 
TalkGroup Etiquette 
 

Primary Point of Contact 
 

Name:  
 
Address:     
City, State, Zip:     
Office Telephone: 
Cell Phone: 
 
Email: 

Secondary Point of Contact 
 
Name: 
 
Address:     
City, State, Zip:     
Office Telephone: 
Cell Phone: 
 
Email: 

 
 
We, _______________________ agree to the following terms as primary members of SRRCS: 
                     Agency Name   
 
 
 The Emergency button on our radios will be disabled unless the Agency has their own dispatch center or 

are specifically contracted by a dispatch center to operate on their talkgroup and use the Emergency button. 
In the future, if our Agency’s needs change regarding the emergency button, we will bring the matter to 
TAC for discussion and coordination. All Secondary User requests to activate the emergency buttons on 
their radios must be approved by the SMG.   
 

 We will primarily and routinely utilize only our assigned talkgroups. 
 

 The non-emergency use of another agency’s talkgroup requires a pre-arranged operational plan or contract 
with the talkgroup’s owner. 
 

 The points of contact above are knowledgeable; and have the means to immediately resolve issues 
pertaining to using the SRRCS radio system.    
 

 We will provide training to all of our staff utilizing the SRRCS radio system regarding proper talkgroup 
protocols as outlined herein, and any changes hereto. 
 

 Our agency understands and agrees to notify, when possible, the appropriate SRRCS dispatch center prior 
to conducting operations in their area that may have a potential of requiring emergency support. 
 

 Our agency understands and agrees to respond to dispatcher inquiries regarding “Accidental Key-ups”. The 
appropriate response to these inquiries will be similar to “our agency’s name XXX accidental”. 
 

 In the case of life-threatening events, i.e. “shots fired”, “one at gun-point”, “physical”, etc., we understand, 
and agree that SRRCS dispatchers may not be aware of our location, and they will require our staff to 
include any additional information needed to provide them with assistance. 



 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 
CAPITAL PROJECT STATUS REPORTS – JUNE 30, 2020 

Action Requested:  Receive and File 
Key Staff: Timothy Jones, Chief Financial Officer 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

The Authority is currently under contract for the following 16 capital projects:  
 

1. US 50 Bus and Carpool Lanes, Phase 2 (California Department of Transportation) 
 

2. Interstate 5 Bus and Carpool Lanes (California Department of Transportation) 
 

3. Capital SouthEast Connector (Connector JPA) 
 

4. Capital SouthEast Connector Mitigation Program (Connector JPA) 
 

5. Folsom Blvd. Watt Ave. to Bradshaw Rd. (County of Sacramento) 
 

6. Greenback Lane – Fair Oaks Blvd. to Main (County of Sacramento) 
 

7. Hazel Ave. Improvements – US 50 to Folsom Blvd. (County of Sacramento) 
 

8. Hazel Ave. Improvements, Phase 1 – US 50 to Madison Ave. (County of Sacramento) 
 

9. Madison Ave Improvements – Sunrise Blvd. to Hazel Ave. (County of Sacramento) 
 

10. South Watt Ave. Improvements - Route 16 (County of Sacramento) 
 

11. Sunrise Blvd. Jackson Rd. to Grantline Rd. (County of Sacramento) 
 

12. Watt Ave. Improvements – Antelope Road to Business 80 (County of Sacramento) 
 

13. Folsom Blvd. Improvements – Bradshaw Road to Sunrise Blvd. (City of Rancho Cordova)  
 

14. Sunrise Blvd. Improvements – Gold Country to Jackson Roads (City of Rancho Cordova) 
 

15. Downtown Intermodal Station (City of Sacramento) 
 

16. Interstate 5/Richards Blvd. Interchange Upgrade (City of Sacramento)  
 

Attached, you will find a status report for each project under contract with the Authority. 
 

 
 
Attachment 



































 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO EXAMINE SALES AND USE TAX RECORDS 

Action Requested:  Authorize Executive Director 
Presenter: Timothy Jones, Chief Financial Officer 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 
 
Adopt resolution authorizing Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates (HdL) to examine sales or 
transaction and use records of the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA). 

 
Background 
 
During the last four years, the Authority has annually engaged a consultant to provide revenue 
forecasting services for the Measure A program. Typically, staff request the forecast in the 
February/March timeframe in preparation for the budget cycle. This year’s forecast was completed 
by Avenu Insights and Analytics in late February and that information was incorporated into the 
approved budget for FY 2020-21. Given the unique season we are in, our budget letter included a 
statement that revenue projections would be revisited in the August/September timeframe.  
 
Discussion 
 
We currently have a contract with Avenu Insights and Analytics to perform an updated revenue 
forecast later this month. The firm will provide projected sales tax revenue data for each year 
remaining in the program – through 2039. Over the last several months, staff have been in 
discussions regarding revenue projections with Self-Help counties throughout the state. The 
consensus is that no one understands to what extent the pandemic will impact their sales tax revenue 
streams – just that there will be less to go around.  
 
Given the uncertainty we are facing and the importance of understanding our revenue stream for 
planning purposes, staff contracted with a second firm – HdL Companies - to perform sales tax 
revenue projections using their proprietary methods. In doing so, we believe the additional cost - 
$5,000 – is well spent for a second opinion on our future revenue stream.  
 
HdL Companies provides similar services to over 500 jurisdictions in California. It serves 48 counties, 
332 cities, 180 transactions tax districts, and the County of Sacramento.    
 
 
Attachment  



SACRAMENTO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 
 

A Resolution Authorizing the Examination of Sales or Transactions and 
Use Tax Records 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. STA-0002 and STA-04-01 of the 
Sacramento Transportation Authority (STA) and Section 7270 of the Revenue 
and Taxation Code, the STA entered into a contract with the California 
Department of Tax and Fee Administration (formerly State Board of Equalization) 
(CDTFA) to perform all functions incident to the administration and collection of 
the Transactions and Use Tax Ordinances and the local sales and use taxes; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, STA deems it necessary for authorized representatives of 
STA to examine confidential sales and transactions and use tax records of the 
CDTFA pertaining to sales and transactions and use taxes collected by the 
CDTFA for STA; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code 
sets forth certain requirements and conditions for the disclosure of CDTFA 
records and establishes criminal penalties for the unlawful disclosure of 
information contained in, or derived from sales or transactions and use tax 
records of the CDTFA; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code 
requires that any person designated by STA shall have an existing contract to 
examine STA’s sales and transactions and use tax records.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, or other officer 
or employee of STA designated in writing by the Executive Director to the 
CDTFA is hereby appointed to represent STA with authority to examine all of the 
sales and transactions and use tax records of the CDTFA pertaining to sales and 
transactions and use taxes collected for STA by the CDTFA pursuant to the 
contract between STA and the CDTFA.  The information obtained by examination 
of CDTFA records shall be used for purposes related to the collection of STA’s 
sales and transactions and use taxes by the CDTFA pursuant to the contract. 
 
Section 2.  That the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, or other officer 
or employee of STA designated in writing by the Executive Director to the 
CDTFA, is also hereby appointed to represent STA with the authority to examine 
those sales and transactions and use tax records of the CDTFA for purposes 
related to the following governmental functions of STA: 



 
 a)  tracking and economic development  
 b)  forecasting and budget related functions  
 c)  detection of misallocations and deficiencies  
 
The information obtained by examination of CDTFA records shall be used only 
for those governmental functions of STA listed above.  
 
Section 3.  That Hinderliter, de Llamas and Associates (HdL) is hereby 
designated and authorized to examine all of the sales and transactions and use 
tax records of the CDTFA pertaining to all sales and use taxes collected for STA 
and any transaction and use taxes collected for STA under the following 
Transactions and Use Tax Ordinances and any future Transactions and Use Tax 
Ordinances that may be enacted in the STA: 
 
 Measure A Sales Tax for Transportation                             April 1, 2009       
  
The person or entity designated by this section meets all of the following 
conditions: 
 
 a) has an existing contract with STA to examine sales and transactions and 

use tax records; 
 
 b) is required by that contract to disclose information contained in, or derived 

from those sales and transactions and use tax records only to an officer or 
employee authorized under Section 1 (or Section 2) of this resolution to 
examine the information; 

 
 c) is prohibited by that contract from performing consulting services for a 

retailer during the term of that contract; 
 
 d) is prohibited by that contract from retaining the information contained in or 

derived from those sales and transactions and use tax records after that 
contract has expired. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the information obtained by 

examination of CDTFA records shall be used only for purposes related to the 
collection of STA’s sales and transactions and use taxes by the CDTFA pursuant 
to the contracts between STA and the California Department of Tax and Fee 
Administration and for purposes relating to the governmental functions of STA 
listed in Section 2 of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4.  This resolution supersedes all prior sales and transactions and use 
tax resolutions of STA adopted pursuant to subdivision (b) of Revenue and 
Taxation Code Section 7056. 
   
 
 On a motion by Member __________________, seconded by Member 
__________________, the foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by the 
Governing Body of the Sacramento Transportation Authority at a regular meeting 
thereof this 13th day of August, 2020, by the following vote, to wit: 
 
 
AYES:   

 
NOES:  

 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Chairperson, Governing Body of the 
      Sacramento Transportation Authority 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________________ 
  Clerk of the Governing Body 
 



 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 
REVISED BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2020  

Action Requested:  Approve  

Key Staff: Will Kempton, Executive Director 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve changes to the Authority’s 2020 Meeting Schedule to authorize a meeting for September 
16, 2020 in lieu of the regularly scheduled meeting on September 10, 2020 to accommodate budget 
deliberations of the Board of Supervisors.  In addition, authorize a meeting for October 14, 2020 in 
lieu of the regularly scheduled meeting on October 8, 2020 to provide for better calendar spacing 
between meetings and to allow for an equitable distribution of Authority workload over the remainder 
of the year.    
 
Background 
 
At its meeting on November 14, 2019, the Authority approved a Board Meeting Calendar for the year 
2020.  That schedule includes regular monthly meeting dates for September 10, 2020 and October 
8, 2020.  Changes to the approved calendar should also be approved by the Authority.   
 
Discussion 
 
The next meeting of the Sacramento Transportation Authority is currently scheduled for September 
10, 2020.  On that date, however, the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors (BOS) will be holding 
budget hearings which have been delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the BOS Chambers 
will not be available.  The Office of the County Clerk has offered the following Wednesday, 
September 16, 2020 as a substitute date for the Authority’s September meeting.  With Board 
approval, staff will modify the calendar and update the STA website to reflect the changed meeting 
schedule.   
 
If the September meeting is delayed until September 16, 2020, the currently scheduled meeting for 
October 8, 2020 will take place just three weeks following the September session.  The press of 
Authority business is such that cancellation of a meeting before the end of the year is not advisable 
and it makes sense that the remaining workload be equitably divided over the next three months.  To 
accommodate the planned workload and to balance the time between meetings, staff recommends 
moving the October meeting date to October 14, 2020.   

 
 

 



 

AUGUST 13, 2020 AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
APPROVAL OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT PROCESS AND APPOINTMENT OF 
SELECTION COMMITTEE  

Action Requested:  Approve Process and Authorize Committee and Member 
Appointments 

Key Staff: Will Kempton, Executive Director 
 
Recommendation 
 
Following presentation of the proposed process for recruiting a permanent Executive Director, 
including a review of the proposed schedule, approve the process and schedule and authorize the 
Chair to appoint a Selection Committee of between three and seven members to review applications, 
interview applicants and propose a final candidate(s) for the Governing Board to consider.   
 
 
Background 
 
With the pending end-of-2019 retirement of Norm Hom, the previous STA Executive Director, the 
Governing Board elected in September of last year to hire the current the incumbent as an Interim 
Executive Director for no more than a one-year period ending in December of 2020.  This decision 
was made because of the Board’s intent to pursue a supplemental transportation sales tax measure 
in November of this year. The incumbent was selected based on past experience with respect to 
administration of local sales tax programs and expertise in the development and implementation of 
program expenditure plans.  In addition to carrying out these responsibilities, the incumbent was 
charged with the initiation of a process to recruit a permanent replacement to assume the role of 
Executive Director prior to the end of the year.   
 
Discussion 
 
Attachment 1 contains a proposed schedule for the recruitment of a new Executive Director for the 
Sacramento Transportation Authority (STA).  With the Board’s approval today, a job announcement 
(see Attachment 2) will be distributed immediately to statewide transportation agencies and other job 
banks outlining the responsibilities of the position, desired qualifications and experience for 
prospective candidates, and other information pertinent to the post.   
 
In summary, the final filing date is proposed for September 28th, allowing for a 45-day outreach 
period, with application reviews and candidate interviews scheduled for September 29th through 
November 4th.  The reviews and interviews will be conducted by a Selection Committee consisting 
of three to seven members of the Governing Board to be appointed by the Chair at today’s meeting.  
It is intended that the Committee will make a recommendation of the preferred candidate or 



 
August 13, 2020   
Item # 10  Page 2 
 

 
candidates to the full Board with a final interview(s) scheduled for Closed Session on November 12th, 
at the regularly scheduled monthly meeting.  It is anticipated that the Board will announce its selection 
at the meeting following the closed session.  The new Director will assume his or her role effective 
December 11th following the December Board meeting, and formal introduction of the new appointee 
will take place at the December 10th meeting.   
 
Attachments   
 

 
 

 



SACRAMENTO TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

NEW EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

PROPOSED RECRUITMENT SCHEDULE 

(All dates 2020) 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Board Direction for Recruitment Process and August 13 at Governing Board Meeting 
Formation of Selection Committee  

Advertise Position Opening August 13 – September 28 (45 days) 

Application Due Date September 28 

Selection Committee: Review & Rank Applications September 29 – October 13 (15 days) 

Selection Committee: Establish List of Finalists to Invite for Interviews October 14 

Notify Applicants of Status/Invite Finalists to Interview October 15 

Reference and Background Checks on Finalists October 16 – October 20 

Selection Committee: Finalist Interviews October 26 – November 4 

Selection Committee: Select Preferred Candidate No later than November 4 

Preferred Candidate Interview with Full Board and November 12 at Governing Board Meeting 
Official Appointment of New Executive Director (Closed Session) 

New Executive Director Start Date December 11 

Public Introduction of New Executive Director December 10 at Governing Board Meeting 



 

Sacramento Transportation Authority 

 
Job Opportunity 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

THE SACRAMENTO AREA 

The Sacramento area is one of the most attractive regions in the country. The greater metropolitan area, 
consisting of Sacramento and parts of Yolo, Placer, El Dorado, Sutter, and Yuba Counties, has a population 
of over 2.2 million, with 1.5 million residing within Sacramento County. 

Sacramento boasts the NBA’s Sacramento Kings, the Sacramento River Cats Triple A baseball team, 
Sacramento Republic FC soccer, and many other recreational, entertainment and cultural activities. Each 
December, Sacramento attracts some of the world’s top long-distance runners to the California 
International Marathon. Historic Old Sacramento, the State Railroad Museum, Crocker Art Museum, 
Governor’s Mansion, Sacramento Zoo, Sutter’s Fort, American River Parkway, Music Circus, Sacramento 
Convention Center, California State History Museum, Johnny Cash Trail and the State Capitol Building are 
other attractions located in the immediate area. Top-name entertainers perform at Golden 1 Center and 
Memorial Auditorium. Each summer Sacramento hosts the California State Fair which attracts more than 
a half million visitors. 

The Sacramento area offers some of the lowest housing prices of major cities in the state. Many new 
residents have relocated from the San Francisco Bay Area and neighboring counties to take advantage of 
Sacramento’s employment opportunities, reasonable cost of living, and competitive salaries. The current 
median home price in Sacramento County is approximately $395,000. 

THE AGENCY 

The Sacramento Transportation Authority (STA) has a staff of 3 full-time employees: Executive Director, 
Chief Financial Officer, and Special Programs Manager. Budgeted revenues for FY 2020-21 are $149 
million, most of which is passed through to local transportation providers. The administrative budget is 
approximately $815,000, and the Authority has a $360 million debt portfolio. Policy direction is provided 
by a 16-member governing board of local elected officials (County Supervisors and City Councilpersons). 

The STA is primarily responsible for administering the Measure A program. Measure A is a voter-approved 
30-year sales tax program providing funding for local transportation services and capital projects.  The 
program also collects a county-wide development impact fee for expenditure on capital improvements. 

In addition, the STA administers the Sacramento Metropolitan Freeway Service Patrol (SacMetro FSP) 
program in cooperation with Caltrans and the California Highway Patrol. The program’s primary objective 
is to reduce traffic congestion caused by roadway incidents. 



_____________________________________________________________________________________
STA Executive Director Recruitment  Page 2 of 5 

The STA Governing Board and staff also administer the operations of the Sacramento Abandoned Vehicle 
Service Authority (SAVSA). SAVSA provides funding to participating local jurisdictions for the abatement 
of abandoned vehicles and vehicle parts on streets and private property. 

The STA provides a number of other functions related to setting priorities for the expenditure of specified 
state and federal transportation funds in Sacramento County. 

HISTORY OF THE STA 

The Sacramento Transportation Authority (STA) was created in 1988 when Sacramento County’s 
electorate approved Measure A. The STA is a local transportation authority created pursuant to California 
Public Utilities Code Sections §180000-§180264. 

For more information about the STA, please go to: www.sacta.org 

THE POSITION 

The Executive Director manages the day-to-day operations/activities of the STA, SacMetro FSP and SAVSA 
programs. Excellent communication and interpersonal skills are vital to articulate STA’s vision and build 
community awareness of Measure A. Strong leadership skills are necessary to balance the varied 
perspectives of major stakeholders, business entities, and the general public. The position requires strong 
project management, report writing, and planning/programming skills. Belief in public accountability and 
a commitment to transparency are musts. 

The STA Executive Director is an At-Will position that serves at the pleasure of the STA Governing Board. 
The start date for this position is Friday, December 11, 2020. 

SUMMARY OF RESPONSIBILITIES/DUTIES 

 Collaborate with local, state, and regional transportation agencies, business interests and the 
public to deliver the Measure A transportation program 
 

 Advise local transportation agencies on the eligibility of expenditures 
 

 Represent the agency in public forums: STA Board and local County/City policy board meetings, 
media, stakeholder organization meetings, and community events 
 

 Develop policy recommendations for the Governing Board and implement those policies adopted 
by the Board 
 

 Manage capital program with available resources 
 

 Provide leadership and direction in advancing sales tax and other initiatives 
 

 Serve as an ex officio member of the Measure A Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
(ITOC) created as a safeguard for the use of public sales tax dollars 
 

 Supervise two professional staff persons and assorted consultants 
 

 Be familiar with the Sacramento region’s transportation policy and project delivery issues 

 

http://www.sacta.org/


_____________________________________________________________________________________
STA Executive Director Recruitment  Page 3 of 5 

CORE COMPETENCIES 

The STA Governing Board is seeking a seasoned, ethical and pragmatic leader, one who embraces 
transparency and accountability and exhibits the following core competencies: 

 Political Awareness. Ability to navigate in a political environment, possessing the capability of 
successfully performing in all relevant venues, including interactions with major stakeholders, the 
business community, and elected officials and directors/managers of local entities. 
 

 Creativity and Innovation. Ability to think creatively, drawing together varied input and 
information to arrive at new and innovative solutions or courses of action to deal with problems 
and issues.  
 

 Technical Expertise.  Possession of demonstrated expertise in not only directing staff work but 
also understanding the finer points of critical issues and personally performing original work as 
needed.  Experience working with transportation projects and programs and well-honed strategic 
planning skills are a necessity. 
 

 Leadership and Drive. Possession of well-rounded management skills and a level of comfort 
working in a small agency with a hands-on role. Capability of serving as an Influential and proactive 
visionary who encourages without being a micromanager. 
 

 Results Oriented.  Ability to maintain a firm focus on useful results and outcomes. 
 

 Interpersonal Skills. The Executive Director must possess outstanding listening and 
communication skills in order to support the Board and lead the staff in providing open, 
responsive and customer-oriented service.  The person selected will be expected to maintain 
cooperative working relationships with other local agencies, the region and the state. 

QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERIENCE/CHARACTERISTICS 

 Strong report-writing skills and the ability to develop and implement complex strategic plans 
 

 Familiarity with the principles of public administration and ability to apply those principles in 
managing a public agency 
 

 Familiarity with the principles of transportation planning, engineering, and project delivery 
 

 Experience in public agency accounting, budgeting, and contract management  
 

 Familiarity with the principles of public finance and the management of public debt 
 

 Awareness and skills in transportation policymaking at the local, regional, state, and federal level, 
particularly as it effects Sacramento County 
 

 Experience working with policy boards, the Brown Act, and Public Records Act requests  
 

 An enthusiastic, inspiring, and engaged communicator who is comfortable with public speaking, 
media relations, and public exposure 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________
STA Executive Director Recruitment  Page 4 of 5 

QUALIFICATIONS/EXPERIENCE/CHARACTERISTICS (Continued) 

 Ability to work collaboratively with local elected officials and public agency managers to address 
problems/issues to the satisfaction of affected parties 
 

 Ability to understand and balance diverse perspectives among local elected officials, public agency 
managers, and community stakeholders 
 

 Ability to work in a political environment 
 

 Proven experience leading or involvement with public initiatives and building support for those 
efforts 
 

 Successful at building collaborative business and community-oriented working relationships 
 

 The ability to build and maintain trust 
 

MINIMUM EDUCATION AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 Bachelor’s Degree in Public Administration, Transportation Planning, Engineering, Business 
Administration or a related field. An advanced degree is helpful. 
 

 Ten (10) years of progressively responsible senior leadership and/or organizational management 
experience 

COMPENSATION 

The salary range for this position is $15,155/month – $16,707/month 

BENEFITS 

 CalPERS retirement 2.5%@55 (three highest years) for classic members or 2%@62 for new 
members under PEPRA (STA does not participate in Social Security) 
 

 Deferred Compensation: Voluntary participation in CalPERS Supplemental Income (457) Plan (no 
employer match) 
 

 Vacation: 
 

 2.6 weeks annually (0–3 years’ service) 
 

 3.6 weeks annually (4–15 years’ service) 
 

 4.6 weeks annually (>15 years’ service) 
 

 Sick Leave: 15 days per year 
 

 12.5 holidays per year 
 

 Employer provided cafeteria plan: $600 per month plus 5.0% of monthly salary-equivalent to 
purchase CalPERS health insurance and/or dependent care (unspent cafeteria plan funds are paid 
to employee) 
 

 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________________
STA Executive Director Recruitment  Page 5 of 5 

BENEFITS (Continued) 

 Employer-paid dental and vision plans for employee and dependents 
 

 Employer-paid $50,000 term life insurance policy 
 

 Bereavement leave, mileage reimbursement, employee assistance program 

APPLICATION AND SELECTION PROCEDURE 

The final filing date for this position is Monday, September 28, 2020.  To be considered for this exceptional 
career opportunity, submit your résumé, cover letter, a list of five work-related references. Résumé 
should reflect years and months of employment, beginning/ending dates as well as relevant work 
experience. Forward your materials via email to: 

Sacramento Transportation Authority 
Tel: (916) 323-0080 

E-mail: will@sacta.org 

Website: www.sacta.org 

Résumés will be screened based on the criteria outlined above. Candidates with the most relevant 
qualifications may be asked to submit samples of work products demonstrating the applicant’s 
effectiveness in professional written communication and strategic thinking and may be invited for 
preliminary interviews. 

All results will be forwarded to a Selection Committee comprised of members of the Sacramento 
Transportation Authority Governing Board. The Selection Committee will invite select candidates for 
interviews. The final, preferred candidate(s) will be interviewed by the entire STA Governing Board on 
November 12. An appointment is expected following the completion of in-depth reference and 
background checks to be coordinated with the successful candidate. 

TIMELINE 

 Application Deadline September 28, 2020 
 

 Review and Rank Applications September 29–October 14, 2020  
 

 Finalist Interviews with Selection Committee October 26-November 4, 2020 
 

 Preferred Candidate(s) Interview with STA Governing Board November 12, 2020 
 

 Appointment of New Executive Director* November 12, 2020 
 

 Start Date December 11, 2020 

 

*Pending results of reference, background, required drug tests 


